N0N-CONFIDENTIAL

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
22 January 2020
Dear Councillor

A Meeting of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee will be held in Committee Room 1,
Marmion House, Lichfield Street, Tamworth, B79 7BZ on Thursday, 30th January,
2020 at 6.00 pm. Members of the Committee are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully

Chief Executive
AGENDA
NON CONFIDENTIAL
1

Apologies for Absence

2

Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10)

3

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (personal and/or
personal and prejudicial) in any matters which are to be considered at this
meeting.
When Members are declaring a personal interest or personal and
prejudicial interest in respect of which they have dispensation, they should
specify the nature of such interest. Members should leave the room if they
have a personal and prejudicial interest in respect of which they do not
have a dispensation.

4

Chair's Update

5

Responses to Reports of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee
To receive an update on responses received to reports of the Corporate Scrutiny
Committee.

6

Consideration of Matters referred to the Corporate Scrutiny Committee
from Cabinet / Council
Discussion item

7

Working Group Updates
To receive any working group updates

8

2019/20 Forward Plan
Discussion item – link to the Forward Plan:
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0

9

Review of housing garage sites (Pages 11 - 18)
(Report of the Portfolio Holder for Assets and Finance)

10

Gungate Update (Pages 19 - 22)
(Report of the Chief Executive)

11

Corporate Scrutiny Committee Work Plan (Pages 23 - 24)
To consider the Committee’s Work Plan

______________________________________
Access arrangements

If you have any particular access requirements when attending the meeting, please contact
Democratic Services on 01827 709267 or e-mail democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk. We can
then endeavour to ensure that any particular requirements you may have are catered for.
Filming of Meetings
The public part of this meeting may be filmed and broadcast. Please refer to the Council’s
Protocol on Filming, Videoing, Photography and Audio Recording at Council meetings which can
be found here for further information.
The Protocol requires that no members of the public are to be deliberately filmed. Where
possible, an area in the meeting room will be set aside for videoing, this is normally from the front
of the public gallery. This aims to allow filming to be carried out whilst minimising the risk of the
public being accidentally filmed.
If a member of the public is particularly concerned about accidental filming, please consider the
location of any cameras when selecting a seat.
FAQs
For further information about the Council’s Committee arrangements please see the FAQ page
here

.

To Councillors: T Jay, B Price, R Bilcliff, R Claymore, R Ford, S Goodall, Dr S Peaple,
P Standen and M Summers

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
HELD ON 5th DECEMBER 2019
PRESENT:

Councillor T Jay (Chair), Councillors R Bilcliff, R Claymore,
R Ford, S Goodall, Dr S Peaple, P Standen and M Summers

The following officers were present: Anna Miller (Assistant Director – Growth &
Regeneration), Matthew Fletcher (Head of Economic Development and
Regeneration) and Jo Hutchison (Democratic Services, Scrutiny and Elections
Officer)
No apologies were received. Councillor R Bilcliff left the meeting at 6.45pm.
59

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 14th November 2019 were approved and
signed as a correct record.
(Moved by Councillor R Ford and seconded by Councillor S Goodall)

60

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

61

CHAIR'S UPDATE
The Chair reported that he had circulated a note to members explaining the
proposed changes to the Committee’s Work Plan, which in summary were to:
 move the update on the Corporate Investment Strategy to February 2020;
 move the Member training update to March 2020;
 move the Parking Toolkit review to then next municipal year (May 2020);
 add twice yearly updates on Solway Trading Company to the Committee’s
work plan;
 target specific dates for the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme review,
Review of Legal Services and the Assembly Rooms.
The Chair reported that he had received no responses to that note and members
indicated that they were in agreement with the proposed revisions.

1

Page 5

Corporate Scrutiny Committee

62

5 December 2019

RESPONSES TO REPORTS OF THE CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
An update on the Cleaning Services review was requested.

63

CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REFERRED TO THE CORPORATE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FROM CABINET / COUNCIL
No items had been referred to this Committee.

64

WORKING GROUP UPDATES
The Chair reported that the QPR executive summary working group had
responded to the Executive Director, Finance’s proposals for the format of the
QPR executive summary and the working group expected that the Q3 report
would be accompanied with the proposed executive summary for the Committee’s
consideration.
The Chair suggested that a scoping document working group be formed to look to
create a short document which could be submitted to Officers to support them in
the production of the reports for the Committee. It was reported that a scoping
document had been in use some time ago. It was agreed that the old document
would be reviewed to consider whether it was suitable for the purpose and the
Chair would report back to a future meeting of this Committee.

65

2019/20 FORWARD PLAN
There were no new items on the Forward Plan to consider.

66

ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY UPDATE
The Committee received the Report of the Assistant Director, Assets on the Asset
Management Strategy Update. It was reported that a review of the Council’s
Asset Management Strategy cutting across both housing and non-housing
property is planned to take place during the 2020/21 financial year and it was
agreed to update the Work Plan accordingly.

67

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PLAN
The Committee agreed that an additional meeting of the Committee was required
and agreed that the preferred date for an additional meeting was 30 th January
2020.
The Committee considered its Work Plan and agreed to amend the Work Plan as
follows:
Corporate Scrutiny Work Plan
Work Plan 2019 – 2020
2

Page 6

Corporate Scrutiny Committee

TARGET
MEETING
DATE

5 December 2019

SUBJECT

MEETING WHEN
ITEM ADDED TO
WORK PLAN

30 January
2020
30 January
2020

Corporate investment strategy

5th February
2020
5th February
2020
5th February
2020
5th February
2020

QPR Q3 2019/20 Report

Regular item

Market tender progress Update

August 2019

Garage Sites

Review of senior management
restructuring (update)
Working group report on QPR Report
Executive Summary

June 2019

12th March 2020 Member Training update
12th March 2020 Member Support Working group – sub
group on Member Communications
th
12 March 2020 Review of Cabinet decisions over
previous 12 month period
May 2020
June 2020
July 2020
August 2020
TBC
TBC
Quarter 4 2020

Parking Toolkit review
Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme
2021 onwards - revisit
Review of Legal Services (post
implementation)
The Assembly Rooms – review of
project
Housing Repairs & Investment
Contract Review
Solway Trading Company Update (2x
per year)
Asset Management update

June 2019

October 2019
November 2019
November 2019
November 2019
November 2019
December 2019
December 2019

Upcoming Corporate Scrutiny Committee Meetings
30th January 2020
5th February 2020 (QPR Q3 focus)
12th March 2020

3

Page 7

Corporate Scrutiny Committee

68

5 December 2019

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED:
That members of the press and public be now excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following item on the grounds that the business involves the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 3 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).
(Moved by Councillor R Ford and seconded by Councillor S Goodall)

69

TOWN CENTRE WORKSTREAMS
The Committee received the confidential Report of the Portfolio Holder for
Heritage and Growth on Town Centre Workstreams. The report provided an
update to Corporate Scrutiny on progress against work delivered by the Council
in the town centre. The Chair introduced the Assistant Director, Growth and
Regeneration and the Head of Economic Development and Regeneration.
The report covered six themes:






Engagement;
Funding Applications
Regeneration Projects
Strategy Development
Project Development

The Head of Economic Development and Regeneration reported on the extensive
engagement relating to the town centre through the Leader led – Tamworth –
What’s Next engagement as well as engagement working with local businesses
and commercial property owners.
The Committee discussed how the council engaged with local businesses and
how this was communicated to members, as well as the changing funding
structure for town centres.
Councillor Bilcliff left the meeting.
The Head of Economic Development and Regeneration reported on the work
underway with funding applications and the deadlines to be met.
The Committee noted the value of the considerable feedback which had been
received through the What’s Next Campaign. Furthermore, the Council had led,
with the Greater Birmingham and Solihull LEP, a study of 10 town centres in the
area which included Tamworth, and this had helped to support the council’s
understanding of the drivers affecting Tamworth town centre.

4

Page 8

Corporate Scrutiny Committee

5 December 2019

The Committee received an update on the regeneration projects, including the
work at the Philip Dix Centre as well as other projects to enhance access points
to the town centre.
It was reported that the Town Centre Strategy and the Tourism Strategy work had
been postponed due to the requirements of the Future High Street Funds.
Project development work continued internally on projects which could be
explored.
The Committee thanked the Officers, who then left the meeting.

Chair

5

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 30TH JANUARY 2020

REPORT OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR ASSETS AND FINANCE
REVIEW OF HOUSING GARAGE SITES

EXEMPT INFORMATION

Not exempt

PURPOSE
This report sets out the proposed project plan for the review of housing garage sites.
RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that committee members endorse the project plan for review of
housing garage sites.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A desktop review of all garage sites in Tamworth has been undertaken led by
Cabinet which has resulted in draft proposals for each site.
It is anticipated that initially there will be two distinct workstreams, each with a series
of work packages that will be delivered over several financial years. It is likely that
one or more additional projects will follow on from the second workstream.
Delivery of the two key workstreams will be dependent upon budgets being approved
in February through the budget setting process.
Appendix 1 provides the proposed ‘Project Plan’ for delivery of these workstreams.
The project plan sets out timescales and resources for delivery of the project.
OPTIONS CONSIDERED
As this report relates only to the project planning phase no other options have been
considered. The outputs from this plan will result in a series of options that will require further
consideration.
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
No additional internal resources will be required to deliver this phase of the project. The
project plan sets out the external resources that will be required to deliver the project
planning stages and resources have been identified for approval through the budget setting
process (capital bid for Retention of Garage Sites £700k pa).
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND
The normal risks relating to the procurement of external suppliers will apply however it is
anticipated that there will be sufficient market interest in both workstreams to ensure that
they can be delivered.
Budgets have been identified within the budget setting process to fund both workstreams,

Page 11

without these budgets the workstreams cannot proceed.
EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
None identified at this time.
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
None identified at this time.
Further community consultation will be required during the delivery phases of the project.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION
None
REPORT AUTHOR
Paul Weston, Assistant Director Assets
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

APPENDICES
Appendix 1. Project Plan

Page 12

Garage Site Project
Project Plan

Members of the controlling group have undertaken a desktop review of all garage sites in Tamworth;
this combined with their local knowledge and feedback from residents has resulted in a series of
proposals for each site.
It is anticipated that initially there will be two distinct workstreams, each with a series of work
packages that will be delivered over several financial years. It is likely that one or more additional
projects will follow on from the second workstream.
Delivery of the two key workstreams will be dependent upon budgets being approved in February
through the budget setting process.

Page 13

Workstream One – Retained Garage Sites
Package Title

2

Appointment
of Technical
Project
Management

3

Site Survey
Work &
Appointment
of delivery
Contractor
Member
Consultation

Page 14

Work
Package
1

4

5

Immediate
Actions

Finalise
delivery

Work Content


Continuation of the
replacement of doors to
garages under properties
 Clearance of garage sites
known to be in a
potentially unsafe
condition.
 Clearance of garage sites
suffering from ASB
Undertake procurement process
to appoint a technical project
manager (most likely to be a
Building Surveying consultant) to
manage the overall project
delivery.
 Complete survey of all
sites.
 Produce drawings and
specifications for works.
 Produce cost estimates
 Agree proposals with
Members
 Agree cost estimates with
Members
 Agree project timetable
with Members


Complete planning
process.

Delivery Mechanism

Timescales

Sites being delivered by Leasehold & Estate
Manager with assistance from the Council’s
retained Structural Engineer with works being
delivered through Wates

On site now and continuing until 31st
March 2020.

Procurement to be managed by Leasehold &
Estate Manager with support from AD (Assets)
and Procurement Officer.

Procurement to commence March 2020
with Appointment in April 2020.



Consultant to undertake all aspects
with support and oversight from
Leasehold & Estate Manager.




To commence April 2020.
Outline proposals to be in place
August 2020



Members to confirm proposals prior
to proceeding to procurement phase
of the project.
Agree with controlling group
Information to all Councillors on a
Ward by Ward basis.
Cabinet report on final programme.
Submit planning applications where
needed




To be completed in September
2020
Cabinet report to set out
programme.



Sep/Oct 2020






6

7

Programme



Oversee/Manage
consultation process.

Appoint
Delivery
Contractor
Delivery of
Works



Procure works
contract(s).

Completion of works in line with
the delivery project plan
produced by the technical
consultant.





Finalise programme for procurement
Budget process for 2021 onwards
Consultation process to be scaled to
reflect level of impact on local
community.
 Support from Procurement Officer.
 Procure in a manner that can be
flexible in delivery.
Works delivered by external contractor with
project management by the technical
consultant.



Nov 2020

It is anticipated that the works will be
completed over 5 financial years
commencing December 2020/January
2021.

Page 15

Year 1 – Likely to consist of those sites
identified as being in urgent need of
attention following full detailed survey
work.

8

Marketing &
Lettings








Advertising of sites
through web services.
Consider other methods
of advertising.
Agreement on letting
requirements.
Letting process.
Agree revised lettings
policy.
Geographical targeting of

Managed through the Landlord Team with
support from the PR & Comms teams.
Budgets will be required to fund any paid
marketing campaigns.

Years 2 to 5 – Sites likely to be delivered
on an area by area basis as this is
generally the most cost-effective
approach for contractors.
Detailed programme to be shared with
those responsible for marketing and
letting so that the process can commence
for each site before the agreed handover
date.

9

Stage Reviews

advertising
 Use of paid Social Media
advertising
Upon completion of each tranche
a review of project costs,
demands and letting rates to be
undertaken.

Project Team in conjunction with Members.

Review to be completed prior to year-end
and used to inform following years
programme.

Workstream Two – Options Appraisal
Package Title

Work Content

Delivery Mechanism

Timescales

Appointment
of Consultant

Procurement to be managed by Leasehold &
Estate Manager with support from AD (Assets)
and Procurement Officer.

Procurement to commence March 2020
with Appointment in April 2020.

2

Survey of each
site.
Agree future
projects

4

Identify
project plans
and budgets

Consultant to undertake this element with
limited support from Leasehold & Estate
Manager and AD Assets.
Consultant to Lead with support from ED
Communities, ED Finance, AD Assets.
Members to be involved in decision making
process.
AD Assets

Work to commence in April 2020 and be
complete by August 2020.

3

Undertake procurement process
to appoint a Consultant to
undertake an full options
appraisal for each of the sites
where Members were seeking to
identify best use.
Consultant to inspect all sites and
identify a series of viable options
for further consideration.
Review of the options identified
by the Consultant with a decision
on preferred option for each site.

Page 16

Work
Package
1

Identify projects and submit
Policy Changes for 2021 budgets.

August/September 2020.

September/October 2020

Note:- it is likely that following stage 3 a number of sites may be returned to Workstream One as sites will only be suitable for retention.
The projects likely to arise from Workstream Two are:-






Open market disposal of land
In-house development of sites for non-housing purposes
Allocation for self-build
Partnership working for provision of housing

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

THURSDAY, 30 JANUARY 2020

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

GUNGATE UPDATE

EXEMPT INFORMATION
Not applicable
PURPOSE
To update Corporate Scrutiny on progress on the Gungate Masterplan programme.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1. That members note and approve the contents of this report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Background
The most recent Cabinet Report (13th June 2019) provided Members with an update on work
done to date on the Gungate site and sought approval to move on to the next phase of work.
The Report included options from the emerging Gungate Masterplan with related Schedules
of Accommodation for consideration by Members. At the time of the Report, the Masterplanning process was at Stage 2a – Preliminary Options, Masterplan & Viability – and
endorsement was sought for the evolving direction of the Gungate Masterplan.
The approved Report recommendations were to:
1. Endorse the work undertaken to date and approve the progression of the next phase
of work based on option B
2. Authorise officers to commence discussions and prepare and submit applications to
funding providers to bring in external funding to support the delivery and maximise
the regeneration opportunity.
3. Delegate authority to the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer to enter into
funding agreements that enable the scheme to proceed, in consultation with the
Leader of the Council and the Portfolio Holder for Heritage and Growth.
4. That a further report is taken to Council seeking additional funding to acquire further
sites that are beneficial to the overall regeneration opportunity and endorse officers to
commence negotiations with land owners and leaseholders.
The Report to Cabinet was restricted by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of
the Local Government Act 1972. (Paragraph 3 refers to information relating to the financial or
business affairs of any particular person including the authority holding that information) due
to the commercially sensitive nature of the land assembly proposals.
Gungate Master-planning Process

Page 19

The Gungate Master-planning project commenced at the beginning of 2019 following a grant
of £90,000 from the GBSLEP and a grant of £28,000 from the LGA. Regeneration
Consultants and a specialist Housing Consultancy were appointed and the project continued
throughout 2019 until completion in December 2019. An internal project team managed the
process with representatives from the TBC Executive Leadership Team, the Economic
Development & Regeneration Service and Housing Department with administration provided
by the Business Support Unit. Partnership meetings were held with Staffordshire County
Council (SCC), South Staffordshire College (SSC) and relevant landowners.
Documents produced as part of the process were:
1. Gungate Baseline Report
2. Concept design and emerging proposals
3. Options Appraisal
4. Viability & Delivery Report
The basis of the Master-planning process was to create a flexible masterplan that could
respond to local consultation responses and which was commercially robust. The flexible
masterplan sought to establish the principle of acceptable uses and identify the compatibility
of neighbouring uses along with the practicality of vehicle and public circulation. Following
the Options Appraisal reported to Cabinet in June 2019 the process followed the logical
progression summarised below:
Viability Analysis
•
•
•
•
•

Preferred Option
Proposed phasing
Basis of modelling
Benchmark Land Value Analysis
Assumptions

Viability Outputs
•
Funding Gap
•
Sensitivity testing
Residential Delivery Strategy
•
Viability issues
•
Market testing
•
Key Stakeholders
•
Delivery mechanisms / models
Commercial Delivery Strategy
•
Viability issues
•
Market testing
•
Public Sector Funding
•
Key Stakeholders
•
Delivery mechanisms / models
The report further identified the following Next Steps
•
Land Assembly
•
Funding
•
Route to Market (incl. Development Partners / legal implications)
Although the masterplan identifies uses in various locations across the site, it is worth noting
that flexibility is proposed as part of the plan. This means that were a developer to propose
one of the uses included in the plan, but in a different location at the site, it would still be
considered to be in accordance with the masterplan. Fundamentally, the plan sets out a
range of suitable uses, but acknowledges that the market may deliver these in a different
way. It is important that the plan should not do anything to prevent development where what
is proposed is in line with the broad principles and intentions of the masterplan.
Funding

Page 20

Further to the announcement by GBSLEP of another funding round of the SEP Enabling
Fund, two funding applications have been submitted for funding to develop the Gungate
Multi-storey Car Park project and the Gungate Leisure Centre project. The enabling works
proposed in the bids deal with the specific issues that require resolution for both projects
before they can move onto the implementation stage. If these funding bids are successful
further work will start on these two projects at the beginning of the next financial year (7 th
April 2020). The enabling works include gap funding bids for capital works.
Gungate Land Assembly Process
The land assembly process is running in parallel to the master-planning process. Due to the
commercially sensitive nature of the land assembly process it is not possible to give exact
details however the current position is as follows:
 Negotiations are underway with a landowner and proceeding to agreeing heads of
terms.
 Negotiations with a landowner have not proved fruitful to date and other routes are
being developed, including the consideration of legislation associated with a
compulsory purchase order.
 Negotiations with the County Council on their land ownership are progressing with an
opportunity for a mutually beneficial deal that may result in a unified public sector hub
as a direct output of the agreement.
Gungate Masterplan Consultation Strategy
The results of the master-planning process will be reported through Cabinet in order to arrive
at a preferred masterplan for the Gungate site that has been formally endorsed. Scrutiny will
be kept up to date on progress and asked for their comments as part of this process. It is
anticipated this will be completed by the end of March 2020.
Once approved, the preferred option will be subject to public consultation. This will take the
form of an exhibition, specific meetings where appropriate, discussions with stakeholders
and a survey which people will be invited to complete online, with hard copies available. This
consultation process will be similar to the Tamworth…What’s Next? campaign that invited
opinions on the future of Tamworth Town Centre and will form a logical progression from the
results of the What’s Next campaign. The consultation will be promoted via articles in the
press and online media and through the TBC social media channels. Due to Cabinet
timescales and purdah commencing on 30th March until 7th May, it is unlikely that
Consultation will take place until after local elections and will run for 6 weeks.
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
There is an existing capital budget available to bring forward land assembly.
Discussions with potential funders are taking place to identify possible sources of finance.
Officers from the Economic Development and Regeneration Service will be leading activity
with support from relevant senior Officers from CMT, utilising relevant skills and specialisms
from other service areas where required and appropriate.
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND
Land assembly and the delivery of the programme going forward will require appropriate,
specialist legal advice to ensure all activity is delivered in the most efficient, effective and risk
mitigated approach possible.
EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
None.
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
None.

Page 21

REPORT AUTHOR
Andrew Barratt – Chief Executive
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
Cabinet Report – 13th June 2019

APPENDICES
None

Page 22

Corporate Scrutiny Work Plan
Work Plan 2019 – 2020
TARGET MEETING
DATE

SUBJECT

Page 23

Corporate investment strategy
Garage Sites

5th February 2020
5th February 2020
5th February 2020

QPR Q3 2019/20 Report
Review of senior management restructuring (update)
Working group report on QPR Report Executive Summary

12th March 2020
12th March 2020
12th March 2020

Member Training update
Member Support Working group – sub group on Member
Communications
Review of Cabinet decisions over previous 12 month period

May 2020
June 2020
July 2020
August 2020

Parking Toolkit review
Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2021 onwards - revisit
Review of Legal Services (post implementation)
The Assembly Rooms – review of project

Regular item
June 2019
June 2019

October 2019
November 2019
November 2019
November 2019

Agenda Item 11

30 January 2020
30 January 2020

MEETING WHEN ITEM
ADDED TO WORK PLAN

TBC
TBC
TBC
Quarter 4 2020

Housing Repairs & Investment Contract Review
Solway Trading Company Update (2x per year)
Market tender progress Update
Asset Management update

Upcoming Corporate Scrutiny Committee Meetings
5th February 2020 (QPR Q3 focus)
12th March 2020

November 2019
December 2019
August 2019
December 2019

Page 24

